
AGENDA 

Monday, August 28, 2023 
In-Person Meeting 

AmericInn- Conference Room 
312 Island Drive, Fort Pierre, SD  57532 

8:00 a.m. (CST)  

1. Approval of Agenda

2. Board Member Request for Conflict Waiver

3. Public Comment

4. Approve minutes from the in-person meeting on April 3, 2023, and virtual meetings on June 28, 2023,
and August 8, 2023.

5. Treasurer’s Report
a. Financial Reports
b. Database/Renewal Software Update

6. Board Review and Approve CE Courses
a. Non-COPE CE Approval

7. Old Business
a. National and State Issues Monitored
b. Statute & Administrative Rule Review

8. New Business
a. Licensing (5)
b. Petition for Declaratory Ruling regarding Intense Pulsed Light (IPL)

9. Time and place of next meeting

10. Adjournment

Individuals needing assistance, pursuant to the Americans with Disabilities Act, should contact the in 
Board of Examiners in Optometry (605-279-2244) or sdoptboard@goldenwest.net at least 24 hours 
advance of the meeting to make any necessary arrangements. 

The public may listen to and participate in the meeting by calling 1-253-215-8782 (Meeting ID: 673 963 
1412). Zoom link: https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6739631412 

Board of Examiners in Optometry 
PO Box 513 

Wall, SD  57790 
sdoptboard@goldenwest.net 
Telephone: (605) 279-2244 

Website: http://optometry.sd.gov 

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6739631412
mailto:sdoptboard@goldenwest.net


9 

REQUEST FOR WAIVER 

SDCL 5-18A-17 to 5-18A-17.6 

THIS IS A PUBLIC DOCUMENT 

Date:_________________________________________________________________ 

Employee Name:_______________________________________________________ 

Employee Signature: ____________________________________________________ 

Agency:_______________________________________________________________ 

Position No:____________________________________________________________ 

Title:__________________________________________________________________ 

Brief explanation of your potential conflict of interest: 

Brief explanation of your role in the award, administration or supervision of a contract with an 

outside party or your current or anticipated business transaction with a state agency (other than a 

contract of employment): 

Brief explanation of why you believe a waiver should be granted: 

FOR AGENCY/BHR USE ONLY: 

Date received by official acting on request: 

Signature of Official acting on request:________________________________________ 

Date of interview: 

Date acted upon: 

Waiver granted? Y/N 

If waiver is conditional, so note here (Y/N), list conditions  

on separate sheet and attach to this document. 

Appeal requested?  Y/N 

Appeal received in Governor’s Office: 

Date appeal acted upon: 

Waiver granted on appeal? Y/N 

Received by BHR: 

.

2



  

 

 

 

 

   

 
 

Attendance: President Hase called the meeting to order at 8:00 AM on April 3, 2023. 
1. Approval of Agenda: 

   Board Action: A Crouch moved to approve the agenda, seconded by J Farmen. Vote: 

    

 

2. Conflict of Interest: All board members reported no conflict with agenda items.  

3. Public Comment: No public comment 

4. Approval Minutes:  

   Board Action: J Farmen moved to approve the minutes from the regular meeting on August 
22, 2022, and the Zoom/telephonic meeting on April 25, 2022, seconded by S Schirber. Vote: 

 

 

5. Financial Reports:  

  Board Action: D Martin presented the treasurer’s report found on pages 8-10 of the agenda 
packet. B Gill moved to accept treasurer’s report, seconded by A Crouch. Vote:  

 

 

 

D Martin reported on the progress of the database upgrade. It’s currently in testing and should 
be ready to use for the next license renewal period starting July 1, 2023.  

 

 

 

South Dakota Board of Examiners in Optometry 
Meeting Minutes 

April 3, 2023 
8:00 AM (CST) 

Zoom Virtual Meeting 

Board Members Board Staff Present 
Ashley Crouch, OD   Present 
Jamie Farmen, Consumer Member Present 
Brian Gill, OD    Present 
Angela Hase, OD, President  Present 
Scott Schirber, OD   Present 
 
 

Deni Martin, Executive Secretary 
Megan Borchert, Board General Counsel 

 

Deb Mortenson, South Dakota Optometric Society 
Benjamin Uhl 
Eric Erickson 

Guests 

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

3



6. Board Review and Approve Non-COPE CE Courses: 

  Board Action: Since this meeting was previously scheduled to take place in-person, but the 
weather forecast caused us to move it to a Zoom meeting, S Schirber moved to authorize 
President Hase to review and approve any Non-COPE CE courses submitted from the last 
meeting through April 3, 2023, seconded by A Crouch. Vote:  

 

 

 

7. Old Business 

   A. National and State Issues Monitored: Deb Mortenson, Executive Director for the South 
Dakota Optometric Society, provided updates regarding some efforts by states to limit 
optometrists using the description of “doctor”, limits to Medicare/Medicaid reimbursements, 
and a new DEA continuing education requirements for opioid training. The SDOS is exploring 
options for providing CE to help fulfill these requirements.  No other new information or action 
taken, but issues will continue to be monitored.  

   8. New Business: 

      A. Licensing: 

     Board Action: Pursuant to SDCL 1-25-2, S Scirber moved to enter into executive session to 
consult with legal counsel regarding a licensing matter, seconded by J Farmen. Vote: 

 

 

 

   Board entered into executive session at 8:22am and moved out at 9:05am.  

       At this time, D Martin indicated that Benjamin Uhl had entered into the Zoom meeting after 
the public comment timeframe of the approved agenda. President Hase offered him the 
opportunity to speak at this time. He indicated that he’s here to speak on the current CE 
requirements regarding automatic COPE approval and anything non-COPE being approved 
by the board. He is currently licensed in South Dakota, Iowa, Nebraska and inactive license 
in Texas. He’s the Chair of the Iowa Board of Optometry and on the board of the Iowa 
Optometric Association; however, he is representing himself and he is not here on behalf of 
either of those boards. Iowa eliminated participation in COPE because he feels it limits 
options for CE and creates a burden for presenters. He is asking this board to reconsider its 
position regarding non-COPE continuing educatoin and allow more automatically approved 
non-COPE CE from state associations, the AOA, American Academy of Optometry, schools 
of optometry and ophthalmologists. He was thanked for his comments.  

    B. Scope of Practice Decision Making Framework and Petition: President Hase indicated 
that, now that the procedure code list has been removed from state administrative rule, this 
board needs to discuss a plan regarding scope of practice inquiries. Megan Borchert 

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

4



presented a scope of practice decision making-framework document on page 20 of the 
agenda packet, this similar to what the Board of Nursing uses. This document will be provided 
to individuals to consult with their own legal counsel. If a further declaratory ruling is requested 
from this board, the information regarding how to submit a scope of practice petition, found on 
page 21 of agenda packet, shall also be provided to licensees and the public.  

 

  Board Action: B Gill moved to approve the decision making-framework document, seconded 
by S Schirber. Vote:  

 

 

 

  Board Action: A Crouch moved to approve the declaratory ruling process document, seconded 
by J Farmen. Vote:  

 

 

 

  Board Action: B Gill moved to approve that both documents be posted to the public website, 
seconded by S Schirber. Vote:  

 

 

 

C. Contracts: 

Board Action: A Crouch moved to approve the FY24 contract for the South Dakota 
Optometric Society using the same terms as FY23, seconded by J Farmen. Vote: 

 

 

 

Board Action: S Schirber moved to approve the FY24 contract for Codewise, with a not to 
exceed amount of $10,000, seconded by B Gill. Vote:  

 

 

 

Board Action: S Schirber moved to approve the FY24 contract for Scott Kennedy using the 
same terms as FY23, seconded by J Farmen. Vote: 

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

5



  

 

 

Board Action: A Crouch moved to approve the FY24 contract for Lisa Kollis-Young using the 
same terms as FY23, seconded by B Gill. Vote: 

  

 

 

Board Action: At 9:25am, J Farmen moved to enter into executive session pursuant to SDCL 
1-25-2 to prepare for contract negotiations, seconded by A Crouch. Vote:  

 

 

 

 

* The board moved out of executive session at 9:46am.  

Board Action:  S Schirber moved to approve the contract for Deni Martin for FY24 with a 7% 
increase in salary, a 10% increase in office rent, a 15% one-time bonus from current salary to 
cover additional duties applying to the database design and upgrade. Other terms to remain 
the same as FY23, with a not to exceed amount of $47,611.33, seconded by J Farmen. Vote: 

 

 

 

9.Time and Place of Next Meetings:  

          Monday, August 28, 2023- In-Person Meeting 
 AmericInn- Conference Room 
 312 Island Drive, Fort Pierre, SD  57532 
 8:00am (CST) 
 

   10. Adjournment:   

Board Action: J Farmen moved to adjourn meeting at 9:52am, seconded by B Gill. Vote: 

 

 
 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

6



  

 

 

 

   

 
 

 

* A call-in number and physical location were noticed as available for public access to listen to 
and participate in the meeting.  

1. Attendance: President Hase called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM on June 28, 2023. 
2. Approval of Agenda  

   Board Action: B Gill moved to approve the agenda, seconded by J Farmen. Roll call          
vote: 

      

 

3. Conflict of Interest: No conflict of interest reported.  

4. New Business: Administrative Rule Review 

 The board reviewed current administrative rule changes to align with the American 
Optometric Association Standards of Professional Conduct and related publications. Board 
members provided comments on current administrative rules with the recommendation that 
legal counsel draft a new proposed administrative rule document. They requested that it be 
submitted to the South Dakota Optometric Society for feedback to be considered during the 
next meeting. They requested another Zoom meeting to further discuss any potential 
administrative rule changes. No formal action taken.  

5. Public Comment: Deb Mortenson reported that the South Dakota Optometric Society 
appreciates the opportunity to provide feedback on the proposed rules prior to the next 
meeting.  

  6.Time and Place of Next Meeting:  

 Next Meeting: Zoom/Virtual: Tuesday, July 11, 2023, at 6:00pm CST.  

 

 

 

 

South Dakota Board of Examiners in Optometry 

Virtual Meeting Minutes 

June 28, 2023 
6:00PM (CST) 

Board Members Board Staff Present 
Angela Hase, OD, President  Present 
Scott Schirber, OD. Vice President Present 
Ashley Crouch, OD   Present 
Brian Gill, OD    Present 
Jamie Farmen, Consumer Member Present 
 
 
 

Deni Martin, Executive Secretary 
Megan Borchert, Legal Counsel 
 

 

Deb Mortenson, South Dakota Optometric Society 
Jennifer Stalley, South Dakota Optometry Society 
 

Public Attendance 

 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber YES
Gill YES 5 YES, MOTION CARRIED

 

7



    7. Adjournment:   

Board Action: At 6:47pm, A Courch moved to adjourn meeting, seconded by J Farmen. Roll 
call vote: 

 

eeting adjourned 5:23 PM.  
 

8



* A call-in number and physical location were noticed as available for public access to listen to
and participate in the meeting.

1. Attendance: President Hase called the meeting to order at 6:00 PM on August 8, 2023.

2. Approval of Agenda

Board Action: A Crouch moved to approve the agenda, seconded by J Farmen. Roll call
vote: 

 

3. Conflict of Interest: No conflict of interest reported.

4. New Business: Statute Review

The board reviewed SDCL 36-7-15 with section 2 amended to provide the Board explicit
authority for inspections and to develop rules to regulate the provision of telehealth services.
B Gill moved to begin the legislative process to amend 36-7-15, seconded by A Crouch. Roll
call vote:

  Discussion was had that the Board intended to share the draft with stakeholders for 
additional input to get it submitted to the SD Department of Health ahead of the August 15 
deadline.  

South Dakota Board of Examiners in Optometry 

Virtual Meeting Minutes 

August 8, 2023 
6:00PM (CST) 

Board Members Board Staff Present
Angela Hase, OD, President Present 
Scott Schirber, OD. Vice President Absent 
Ashley Crouch, OD Present 
Brian Gill, OD  Present 
Jamie Farmen, Consumer Member Present 

Deni Martin, Executive Secretary 
Megan Borchert, Legal Counsel 

Deb Mortenson, South Dakota Optometric Society 
Jennifer Stalley, South Dakota Optometry Society 

Public Attendance 

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber ABSENT
Gill YES 4 YES, MOTION CARRIED

Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber ABSENT
Gill YES 4 YES, MOTION CARRIED

9



5. Public Comment: Jennifer Stalley commented on behalf of SDOS. She thanked Megan
Borchert talking through issues with them in earlier drafts. Since the SDOS board has not
met regarding this specific statute, she was not able to give an official stance of their board,
but she appreciates the work Megan put into moving this draft to this stage. They would like
to wait to see what the SD Department of Health (DOH) says and what this board decides to
do. Deb Mortenson concurred with Jennifer’s statements via the Zoom chat as her audio was
not working to be able to verbalize comment.

6. Time and Place of Next Meeting:

 IN-PERSON MEETING: 
Date: Monday, August 28, 2023 
Time: 8:00AM (CST) 
Location: AmericInn- Conference Room, 312 Island Drive, Fort Pierre, SD  57532 

7. Adjournment:

Board Action: At 6:10pm, J Farmen moved to adjourn meeting, seconded by A Crouch. Roll
call vote: 

 

eeting adjourned 5:23 PM.  
Crouch YES Hase YES
Farmen YES Schirber ABSENT
Gill YES 4 YES, MOTION CARRIED

10



11



2024 Bill Draft: DOH-##    

Most recent version as of: 3:55 PM 8/1/2023 

 

FOR AN ACT ENTITLED,  An Act to revise certain provisions related to the licensure of 
Optometrists pursuant to SDCL 36-7. 

 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF SOUTH DAKOTA: 

Section 1. That § 36-7-15 be AMENDED: 

   36-7-15. The board may: 

(1) Promote the safe and qualified practice of optometry; 

(2) Promulgate rules pursuant to chapter 1-26 to govern standards for the safe and qualified 

practice of optometry, to provide office inspections, to govern the provision of telehealth 

services, to adopt a code of ethics or professional conduct, and to establish criteria for 

advertising by optometrists; 

(3) Prepare an annual budget; 

(4) Expend funds for administrative, legal, consultative, and other necessary services from fees 

received by the board; 

(5) Examine, license, endorse, and renew the licenses of qualified applicants; 

(6) Define what constitutes a recognized optometric school; 

(7) Establish the minimum amount and type of continuing education to be required of each 

optometrist seeking renewal of a license; and 

(8) Administer oaths and take testimony pursuant to §§ 1-26-19.1 and 1-26-19.2. 

12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33


	(1) Agenda 2023-8-28 Regular Meeting
	(2) Conflict of Interest Form
	(4.1)Minutes 2023-4-3 Regular Meeting-draft
	South Dakota Board of Examiners in Optometry
	Meeting Minutes
	April 3, 2023
	8:00 AM (CST)
	Zoom Virtual Meeting

	(4.2)Minutes 2023-6-28 Virtual Meeting-draft
	South Dakota Board of Examiners in Optometry
	Virtual Meeting Minutes


	(4.3)Minutes 2023-8-8 Virtual Meeting-draft
	South Dakota Board of Examiners in Optometry
	Virtual Meeting Minutes


	(5.1)2023-8-1 Remaining Authority
	(5.2) 10-Year
	(7b2)2023-8-15 Draft Bill submitted to DOH
	(8b)2023-8-11 IPL Petition

	Date: 
	Employee Name: 
	Agency: 
	Position No: 
	Title: 
	Text1: 
	Text2: 
	Text3: 


